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     DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
To: 
 
The Members of IND Renewable Energy Limited (Formerly Known as Vakharia Power infrastructure 
Limited) 
 
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 11th Annual Report and the audited financial 
statements for the financial year ended 31st March 2022 
 
1 Financial Results 
The summarized financial results for the financial year ended 31st March 2022 are presented below: 

Rs. In Lakhs 
 

Details Financial year ended 31st 
March 2022 (stand alone) 

Financial year ended 
31st March 2021 (stand 
alone) 

Revenue from Operation  -- 
Other Income 5.59 0.20 
Profit before tax (8.66) (9.10) 
Taxation -- -- 
Tax Adjusted for earlier years -- -- 
Profit /Loss for the year carried to 
Balance Sheet 

(8.66) (9.10) 

 
 Performance Highlights 
The Total Income during the financial year ended 31st March 2022 is Rs. 5.59 compared to Rs. 0.20 in 
the previous year. The loss for the year for the financial year ended 31st March 2022 is Rs 8.66 
compared to Rs. 9.10 in the previous year. 
 
 
 Dividend and Reserves 

 
Board of Directors of the Company does not recommend any dividend for the year under 
consideration. No amount is transferred to General reserves for the financial year 2021 - 2022. 
 
 Share Capital 
During the year under review, there was no change in the share Capital structure and the paid up 
capital of the Company remains at Rs. 3,02,73,600 during the year the company had not issued any 
securities carrying convertible in to Equity Shares or carrying differential voting rights. 
 

2. Change In Nature Of Business, If Any: 
During the year under review there is no change in nature of business. 
 

3. Finance & Accounts 
The Company prepares its financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the 
Companies Act 2013(hereinafter referred as "the Act" or "Act") and the Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAPP) as applicable in India. The financial statements have been prepared on 
historical cost basis in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”). The estimates 
and judgments relating to the financial statements are made on a prudent basis so as to reflect in a 
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true and fair manner, the form and substance of transactions and reasonably present the Company’s 
state of affairs, profits and cash flows for the financial year ended 31st March 2022.  

 
 

4. Subsidiaries and Associate Company 
During the year under review, the company does not have any subsidiary /Joint Venture/ Associate 
Company. 
 

5. Statement On Annual Evaluation Of Board, Committee And Its Directors 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and provisions of Regulations of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, the Board has carried out an 
evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working 
of its Audit, Stakeholder Relationship and Nomination & Remuneration Committees. A separate 
exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors who were evaluated on 
parameters such as level of engagement and contribution, independence of judgment, safeguarding 
the interest of the Company and its minority shareholders etc. The performance evaluation of the 
Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board. The performance evaluation of Non-
Independent Directors was carried out by Independent Directors. The Directors expressed their 
satisfaction with the evaluation process 
 

6. Remuneration Policy 
 

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed a 
policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration. 
Remuneration Policy is available on company’s website www.indrenewable.com 
 

7.  Board of Directors 
 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted.  
 
Mr. Abhay Gupta retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for reappointment. Appropriate 
resolution for his re-appointment is being placed for the approval of the shareholders of the Company 
at the ensuring AGM 
 
 

8. Meetings of Board of Directors 
 

The Meetings of the Board of Directors are scheduled well in advance and held at the Registered 
Office of the Company. The notice confirming the meeting and the detailed agenda is sent well in 
advance to all the Directors. 
 
During the year under report, the Board met 10 (Ten) times. 
 

9. Audit Committee 
 

The Audit Committee consists of two independent directors and the CFO, namely: 
 

1) Mr. Mehul shah - Chairman 
2) Mr. Nikhil Kumar shah - Member 
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3) Mr. Nirmal Shah – Member / CFO 
 

During the year, the Audit Committee met 4 times on 30.06.2021, 13.08.2021, 14.11.2021 and 
10.02.2022. 
 

10. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of two independent directors and the CFO, 
namely: 
 

1) Mr. Mehul shah  - Chairman 
2) Mr. Nikhil Kumar shah  - Member 
3) Mr. Nirmal Shah  – Member 
 
 

During the year, the Nomination and Remuneration met One times on 10.02.2022. 
 
11. Internal Financial Controls: 

 
The Company has adopted the policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 
of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of fraud and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records and timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures. 

 
13. Listing of shares on BSE 

During the financial year under report, the equity shares issued by the company continue to be listed 
on BSE. The Listed Capital of the Company is 30273600 at the face value of Rs. 10/- each. 
 

14. Extract of Annual Return 
 

The extract of Annual Return in Form MGT 9, as required in section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
as at 31st March 2022, can be accessed by clicking at the following linkwww.indrenewable.com 
 

15. Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy 
 
The Company is committed to the high standards of Corporate Governance and stakeholder 
responsibility. The Company has established a vigil mechanism to be known as the ‘Whistle Blower 
Policy’ for its Directors and employees to report instances of unethical behavior, actual or suspected 
fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct. The aim of the policy is to provide adequate 
safeguards against victimization of whistle blower who avails of the mechanism and also provide 
direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee, in appropriate or exceptional cases. 
Accordingly, ‘Whistle Blower Policy’ has been formulated with a view to provide a mechanism for the 
Directors and employees of the Company to approach Chairman of the Audit Committee of the 
Company. The purpose of this policy is to provide a framework to promote responsible and secure 
whistle blowing. It protects employees willing to raise concerns about serious irregularities within 
the Company. 
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16. Prevention of Insider Trading 
 

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate 
trading in securities by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The Code requires 
pre-clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company’s 
shares by the Directors and the designated employees while in possession of unpublished price 
sensitive information in relation to the Company and during the period when the Trading Window is 
closed. The Board is responsible for implementation of the Code.All Board Directors and the 
designated employees have confirmed compliance with the Code. The Companies Code of Conduct is 
available on companies Website.  
 

17. Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments by the Company 
The Company has not given any Loans or provided Guarantee and Security within the meaning of 
section 186 of Companies Act, 2013.  
 

18. Significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts 
 
There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts against the Company 
during the year. 
 

19. Material Changes Affecting The Financial Position Of The Company: 
There have not been any material changes and commitment affecting the financial position of the 
Company during the financial year 2020-21. 
 

20. Directors responsibility statement 
 

To the best of knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanation obtained by 
them, your directors make the following statement in terms of section 134 (3) (c) read with section 
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 in preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year ended on 
March 31, 2021 and state that: 

(i) That in preparation of annual accounts for the year ended 31st March 2022 the applicable 
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to 
material departures, if any; 

(ii) And applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
31st March 2022 and of the loss of the Company for the year ended on that date; 

(iii) That the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 

(iv) That the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis 
(v) That the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions 

of all applicable law and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively 
 

21. Statement On Declaration By Independent Director: 
 

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company 
confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of 
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Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules and Regulation 16(1) (b) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and 
disclosure requirements) Regulation, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges. 

 
22. Statutory auditors 

 
M/s. J D SHAH ASSCIATES having ICAI Firm Registration No. 109601W is appointed as the 
statutory auditor of the company to hold office from the conclusion of 10th Annual General meeting 
till the conclusion of 15th Annual General Meeting of the Company. 
 

23. Cost Audit 
 

The provisions of the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules 2014 are not applicable to the 
company’s operations. 
 

24.  Secretarial Audit Report 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under, 
the Company has appointed Mr. L. Krishnamoorthy, Practicing Company Secretary, to undertake the 
Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2021-22. The Secretarial Audit Report for the 
financial year 2021-22 has been annexed to this Report. 
 

25. Internal control system and their adequacy 
The Company has an effective internal control system commensurate with its size and scale of its 
operations. The Audit Committee reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control 
systems and suggests improvements, wherever required. 
 

26.  Environment and safety 
The Company’s operations do not pose any environmental hazards. 
 

27. Statutory Information 
 
(A) Conservation of energy: Not applicable 
(B) Technology Absorption: Not applicable 
(C) Foreign exchange earnings and expenses: Not applicable 

 
28. Corporate Social Responsibility 

The provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the Company. 
  

29. Related party transactions 
 

All transactions entered with related parties for the financial year ended 31st March 2022 were on 
arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. Hence provisions of Section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are not attracted and disclosure in Form AOC 2 is not required. All related party 
transactions are placed before the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors for approval. The 
related party transactions during the year are disclosed in the Notes to the Accounts at appropriate 
place. 
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30. Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013: 
 

The Company has in place a Policy with respect to Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 and has framed a Committee for implementation and 
periodical review of such policy.  
 

31. In terms of Regulation 15(2) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation Relating to Corporate Goveranance 
are not applicable to the company and hence the details are not given. 
 

 
32. Acknowledgement 

 
Your Directors would like to place on record their sincere appreciation to Shareholders, Bankers, 
Institutions and Employees for their co-operation and support. 
 
       For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
Place: Mumbai          Sd/- 
Date: 08.09.2021        (Anupam N. Gupta) 

           Managing Director 
Din:0 2294687 
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ANNEXURE 
 

IND RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED 
CIN L40102MH2011PLC221715 

(A) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee’s remuneration and other 

details in terms of 197(12) of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial personnel) Rules 2014. 

Sr No Requirements Disclosure 

1 The ratio of the remuneration of each 
director to the median remuneration of 
the employees of the Company for the 
financial year ended 31st March 2022 

Not applicable as no remuneration is paid to 
any of the directors 

2 Percentage increase in remuneration of 
each director and CEO in the financial 
year ended 31st March 2022 

Not applicable 

 3 The percentage increase of in the median 
remuneration of employees in the 
financial year. 

Not applicable 

4 The number of permanent employees on 
the roll of the Company 

1 

5 The explanation on the relationship 
between average increase in 
remuneration and the Company 
performance 

Not applicable as there is one KMP with a 
fixed salary of Rs. 22,000 per month  

6 Average percentile increase already 
made in the salaries of employees other 
than the managerial personnel in the last 
financial year and its comparison with the 
percentile increase in managerial 
remuneration and justification thereof 
and point out  if there are any 
exceptional circumstances for increase in 
the managerial remuneration. 

Not applicable 

7 Comparison of the remuneration of the 
Key Managerial Personnel against the 
performance of the Company. 

Not applicable 

8 The key parameters for any variable 
component of remuneration availed by 
the directors 

Not applicable 

9 The ratio of the remuneration of the 
highest paid director to that of the 
employees who are not directors but 
receive remuneration in excess of the 
highest paid director during the year. 

Not applicable. 
 

10 Variations in the market capitalization of 
the Company, price earning ratio as the 

Capitalisation:  (Rupees in lakhs) 
               31/3/22           31/03/2021 
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closing date of the current financial year 
and previous financial year and 
percentage increase over decrease in the 
market quotations of the shares of the 
company in comparison to the rate at 
which the company came out with the 
last public offer in case of listed 
companies, and in case of unlisted 
companies, the variations in the net 
worth of the company as at the close of 
the current financial year and previous 
financial year.  

                 344.51                 333.00 
 
                            Price earning ratio: 
                   31/03/2022           31/03/2021 
                    
                             -39.24              -36.67 
 

 

11 Affirmation that the remuneration is as 
per the remuneration policy of the 
Company 

Yes. The remuneration paid is as per the 
remuneration policy of the Company 

 
 There were no employees who were In receipt of the remuneration which in the aggregate was not less 
than Rs. 1,02,00,000 per annum or in part of year who were in receipt of remuneration  which in 
aggregate was not less than Rs. 8,50,000 p.m.  Hence no details are shown as required under section 
197(12) of the Act and the relevant rules made thereunder. 
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For the financial year ended 31st March 2021 
(Pursuant to section204(1) of the Companies Act 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration Personnel) Rules 2014) 
 

To:     The Members of IND RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED 
 
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by IND RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED  (CIN 
L40102MH2011PLC221715) (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted  in a 
manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory  
compliance for the financial year ended 31st March 2022 and expressing my opinion thereon. 
 
2     Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of the secretarial audit, I hereby report that in 
my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period(from 1st April  2021 to 31st March 2022) covering 
the financial year ended on 31st March 2022 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and 
also  that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in 
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereunder. 
 
3    I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March 2022  according to the provisions 
of : 

i) The Companies Act 2013(the Act)  and the rules made there under; 

ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation)Act 1956 and the rules made there under; 

iii) The Depositories Act 1996 and the regulations and bye laws framed there under; 

iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to 

the extent of foreign direct investment, overseas direct investment and external commercial 

borrowings; 

v) The following regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board 

of India Act 1992(SEBI ACT):- 

(a)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)  (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeover) Regulations, 2011; 

(b) SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations 2015; 

(c) SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2018; 

(d) SEBI (Listing Obligations and  Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 

(e) SEBI (Registrars to an issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations 1993 regarding the 

Companies Act 2013 and dealing with the clients. 

(f) There were no events during the audit period necessitating compliance with the following 

regulations: 

       SEBI (Share based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations 2021; 
       SEBI (Issue and Listing of Securitised Debt Instruments and Security Receipts) 
Regulations 2008; 
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        SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non convertible Securities)Regulations 2021 
       SEBI (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations 2021 
       SEBI (Buyback of Securities) Regulations 2018 

  4             I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued 
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India(Secretarial Standards) 
 
  5             During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, rules, 
regulations, guidelines and Secretarial Standards  directions, circulars,  as mentioned above. 
 
  6             I further report that   

i) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of executive 

directors, non executive directors and independent directors. The changes in the composition 

of the Board of Directors that took  place during the period under review were carried out in 

compliance with the provisions of the Act; 

ii) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the board meetings, agenda and detailed 

notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists seeking and 

obtaining further information  and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and 

for meaningful participation at the meeting; 

iii) Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured  and 

recorded as part of the minutes. 

 7              I further report that  during the audit period there are no specific events/actions having a major 
bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, 
standards,  etc. referred to above. I further report that during the financial year ended 31st March 2022, 
the Company had not carried out any  business activity. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated   3rd September 2022                                                Name: Lakshminarayan Krishnamoorthy      
                                                                                                                FCS No 2358; COP 6885 
                                                                                                             UDIN:F002358D000903104 
                                                                              Peer Review Unique Identification Number: I2005MH514200       
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To  
The Members  
IND RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED 
The Secretarial Audit of even date is to be read with this letter. 
The management is responsible for compliance of applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards, directions 
as applicable to IND RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED(the Company).Our  examination  of the records and 
procedures was based on test check basis for issuing the Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 
ended 31st March 2022. 

1 The management  of the  Company is responsible for the maintenance of secretarial and other 

records as applicable to the Company under various laws. Our responsibility is to issue 

Secretarial Audit Report which is based on the relevant records maintained and 

information/explanations as furnished to us by the Company and its officials. Wherever 

required, the management representation about compliance of laws as applicable to the 

Company including major events during the audit period have been obtained from the 

management. 

2 We have followed the laid down audit practices for verifying the correctness and contents of the 

secretarial and other records. The practices followed by us gave us reasonable basis to form our 

opinion for issuing  the Secretarial Audit Report. 

3 We have not verified the authenticity and signatures of the books and the financial accounts as 

maintained by the Company. 

4 The Secretarial Audit Report does not give  an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor of the potency and competency with which the management has conducted the 

affairs of the Company. 

Place: Mumbai 
Dated: 3rd September 2022                                                                    LakshminarayanKrishnamoorthy 
                                                                                                                                  FCS 2358; COP 6885 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS  

The solar Industry has a potential for huge growth. However, raising of huge funds required for the solar 

projects is a challenge. 

Power sector is a key enabler for India’s economic growth. The sector with its three pillars: generation, 

transmission and distribution, is crucial to India’s infrastructure and economic development. The global 

stature of Indian Power Sector is depicted well by its positioning in terms of generation capacity. India is 

ranked 3rd in the world in terms of electricity generation, 4th in installed renewable energy capacity and 

6th in installed hydro capacity, as reported by international agencies like IEA, Statista, IRENA etc. 

INDIAN ECONOMIC OVERVIEW 

India’s economy grew by 8.4% year-on-year in Q2 of CY 2022. On a sequential basis (quarter-on-quarter 

basis), domestic economic output expanded by 10.4%. With the easing of lockdown restrictions across 

states along with the steady decline in COVID-19 cases and an increased pace of vaccination, a higher 

economic activity and output was recorded in the latest quarter.  

With increasing signs of higher level of activity across sectors, there’s an optimism regarding the 

strengthening of recovery in the domestic economy. Growth in industrial output remained unchanged, at 

3.2% in October 2021, compared with 3.1% in the previous month. Negative growth in the capital and 

consumer goods segment limited growth in overall industrial output. Weakening of the base has 

contributed to a decreased momentum in industrial activity and brought it down from the double-digit 

growth witnessed during the first five months of CY 2021. Output in all sectors witnessed an improvement 

in November, except electricity, capital goods and consumer goods segment. 

BUSINESS & OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW 

Your Company follows a customer –centric business philosophy, with its growth strategy centered on 

transparency in term of offerings, suitability of products and variety of choices to meet a range of needs 

of its customers.  

A key strength of your company is the variety of its funding sources, which helps it optimize funding costs, 

protect interest margins, and retain its diversified funding portfolio. At the same time, this also enables 

the Company to achieve funding stability and liquidity, facilitating reduction in average borrowing costs. 

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE: 

Due to the financial crises and other certain unavoidable circumstances, The Income during the financial 

year ended 31st March 2022 is Rs. 5.59 compared to Rs. 0.20 in the previous year. The loss for the year 

for the financial year ended 31st March 2022 is Rs 8.66 compared to Rs. 9.10 in the previous year. 
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Ratios 

Ratios Current Reporting 
Period 

Previous Reporting 
Period 

% of Change 

Current Ratio 
 

22.57 
 

137.32 
 

-83.56% 
 

Debt Equity Ratio 
 

0.04 
 

0.01 
 

583.34% 
 

Return on Equity Ratio 
 

-2.68% 
 

-2.74% 
 

-2.19% 
 

Trade payables 
turnover ratio 
 

10.90 
 

11.68 
 

-6.69% 
 

Return on Capital 
employed 
 

-2.69% 
 

-2.77% 
 

-3.03% 
 

Return on investment 
 

-2.71% 
 

-2.78% 
 

-2.22% 
 

 

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS 

India has an unwavering commitment to the preservation of the Environment and reduction in GHG 

emissions to fight the menace of global warming. Honourable Prime Minister has reemphasized this 

through the 5 key commitments coined as ‘Panchamrit’, at COP-26, Glasgow. 

Various policy initiatives to fulfil these commitments, coupled with the increase in power demand due to 

the recovery of the economy post-pandemic, have provided ample growth opportunities for the 

Company. 

Due to increase competition the falling tariff is a matter of concern. 

The situation has worsened due to Covid 19 pandemic with economic activities almost coming to a 

standstill. This has affected the Company’s operations. The Company now concentrates on new growth 

plan.  

SEGMENT – WISE PERFORMANCE 

The Company is working in one segment during the year under review, hence the requirement of 

segment-wise reporting is considered irrelevant. 

OUTLOOK 

India has been continuously putting efforts in terms of exploiting its given renewable energy sources 

potential over more than a decade, but a serious turnaround in its development has been observed since 

2014, courtesy the due attention given by the government and certain bold initiatives taken on the policies 

front, which gave more heed to the already existing pro-renewable sentiments in the country. With rapid 
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urbanization and the anticipated northbound trends in the industrial sector growth, power demand in 

India is projected to climb a new high in coming years. To support this likely jump there arises an urgent 

need for a backup in order to avoid any fallout in the desired power requirement.  

HUMAN RESOURCES 

Employees’ relations continued to be harmonious throughout the year with the management. Your 

Company believes that, its employees are its greatest strength and the most valuable asset. The 

management and staff have a mutual faith and trust. The Company provides equal opportunity to all 

employees and strives to inculcate high performance culture in the organisation. Your company remains 

focused on attracting the best talent in the industry, nurturing them through robust learning and 

development mechanisms, and retaining them through progressive employee centric policies and 

practices.  

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS 

Your Company has an adequate system of internal controls for business processes, operations, financial 

reporting, fraud control, and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, among others. Your 

company’s Management Assurance and Audit function is headed by a senior management personnel with 

reporting lines to the Audit Committee of the Board and a dotted line reporting to the Managing Director. 

COMPLIANCE 

The Compliance function of the Company is responsible for independently ensuring that operating and 

business units comply with regulatory and internal guidelines. The Compliance department of the 

Company is continued to play a pivotal role in ensuring implementation of Compliance functions in 

accordance with the directives issued by regulators, the Company’s Board of Director’s and the Company’s 

Compliance Policy. The Audit Committee of the Board reviews the performance of the Compliance 

Department and the status of compliance with regulatory/internal guidelines on a periodic basis. 

New instructions / guidelines issued by the regulatory authorities were disseminated across the Company 

to ensure that the business and the functional units operate within the boundaries set by regulators and 

that compliance risks are suitably monitored and mitigated in their course of their activities and processes. 

New products and process launched during the year were subjected to scrutiny from compliance 

standpoint and proposals of financial services were screened from risk control prospective. The company 

has complied with all requirement of regulatory authorities.  

RISKS 

Company classifies the risks broadly into two categories, viz., External Risks and Internal Risks. The 

external risks mainly comprises of business risks on various fronts. The identified business risks and 

opportunities are deliberated in detail and thereafter considered in the business plan of the Company 

along with the mitigation plan. The internal risks identified by the Board are systematically addressed on 

a continuous basis across the locations. 



   IND RENEWABLE ENERGY LTD  
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

Certain statements under “Management Discussion & Analysis “ describing the Company’s objectives, 

projects, estimates, expectations and predictions may forward looking statement within the meaning of 

applicable securities laws and regulations. Although the expectations are based on reasonable 

assumptions, the actual results could materially differ from those expressed or implied, since the 

company’s operations are influenced by many external and internal factors beyond the control of the 

Company. The Company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward 

looking statements, on the basis of any subsequent developments, information or events.  

Mumbai 

Date: 08.09.2021             For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

           Sd\- 

          (Anupam N Gupta) 

          Managing Director 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements 

 

To the Members of IND Renewable Energy Limited  

(Formerly Known as Vakharia Power Infrastructure Limited) 

 

Opinion 

 

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of IND Renewable Energy Limited (Formerly 

Known as Vakharia Power Infrastructure Limited) (‘the Company’) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 

March 2022 and the Statement of Profit & Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of 

Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, including a summary of 

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred as “the financial 

statements”). 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, aforesaid 

financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so 

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under 

Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule, 2015, as amended, (‘Ind 

AS’) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 

March 31, 2022 and the loss and total comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year 

ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion  

 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) 

specified under section 143(10) of the Act and Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of 

the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule, 2015, as amended, (‘Ind AS’). Our 

responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 

the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 

Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and 

the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statement.  

 

Other Matters 

 

The financial statements of IND Renewable Energy Limited (Formerly Known as Vakharia Power 

Infrastructure Limited) for the year ended March 31, 2021, were audited by another auditor who expressed 

an unmodified opinion on those statements on March 31, 2021. We have relied on them for opening 

balances. 

 

Key Audit Matters 

 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our 

audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 
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audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 

separate opinion on these matters. 

 

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 

 

Information other than the financial statements and Auditor’s report thereon 

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 

the information included in Management’s discussion and analysis, board’s report and corporate governance 

report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  

 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 

form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 

statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 

on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this information; we 

are required to report the fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.   

 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair 

view of the financial position, financial performance of the Company in accordance with the accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the 

Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 

provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 

and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true 

and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
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includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 

conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 

can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 

statements 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

  

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are responsible for 

expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial control system in place 

and the operating effectiveness of such controls.  
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management.  
 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to 

the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.   
 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 

manner that achieves fair presentation.  
 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 

makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial 

statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the 

scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any 

identified misstatements in the financial statements 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among (other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 

that we identify during our audit.  

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
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matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards 

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 

were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 

key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 

public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 

should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 

be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement 

 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as 

it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit & Loss and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this 

report are in agreement with the Books of accounts. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 

under Section 133 of the Act.  

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 31 March 2022 taken 

on record by the Board of Director, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from 

being appointed as Directors in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f) With respect of the adequacy of the internal finance controls over financial reporting of the 

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 

A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the 

Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting over financial reporting for the reasons  

stated therein. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information 

and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. There are no pending litigations that will have impact on the financial position of the 

company 

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts and hence 

the question of commenting on any material foreseeable losses thereon does not arise 

iii. there has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year under report to 

transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. The Question of delay in 

transferring such sums does not arise. 

iv. A) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or 

invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 
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funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity 

(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 

the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 

entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate 

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries; 

 

B) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 

have been received by the company from any person or entity, including foreign entities 

(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 

the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries; and 

 

C) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the   

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 

representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement. 

 

v. The Company has not declared any dividend during the year. Accordingly, compliance with 

the provisions of the Section 123 of the Act is not applicable. 

 
2. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 

requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has complied with provisions of section 197 of the Act. 
 

3. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we have given our report in 
“Annexure B” of this report. 

 

For J D Shah Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 109601W 
  
 
 
Jayesh D. Shah 
Partner 
M.No. 042167 
 
Place: Mumbai         
Date:  30/05/2022 
UDIN: 22042167AJXPXA5945 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s report 
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other legal and regulatory requirements section of our 
report on even date) 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 

 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IND Renewable Energy Limited 
(Formerly Known as Vakharia Power Infrastructure Limited) of as at 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our 
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements:  

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘the 
ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility:  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) and the Standards on Auditing 
(‘the Standards’), issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
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A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2)provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the bank; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the branch’s assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as 
at 31 March 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. 

 
For J D Shah Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 109601W 
  
 
 
Jayesh D. Shah 
Partner 
M.No. 042167 
 
Place: Mumbai          
Date:  30/05/2022 
UDIN: 22042167AJXPXA5945 
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report 
(Referred to in paragraph 3 under the heading of “report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of 
our report of even date) 
 
Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial 
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and 
the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report that: 
 

(i) (a) (A) The Company does not have Property, Plant and Equipments. Accordingly, requirement to 
report under Clause 3(i) Order is not applicable to the Company. 
(B) The Company does not have Intangible Assets. Accordingly, requirement to report under this 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 
(b) The Company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipments. According there is no 

requirement of physical verification by the management during the year.  
(c)  The Company does not have any immovable properties that are held in the name of the 

company. Accordingly, requirement to report under this clause is not applicable.  
(d)  The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets during 

the year ended March 31, 2022 as there are no Property, Plant and Equipment as on balance 
sheet date. 

(e)  There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami 
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made 
thereunder. 

 
(ii) (a) The Company does not have any Inventories. Accordingly, requirement to report under Clause 

3(ii) of this Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 
(b) During any point of time of the year, the company has not been sanctioned working capital 
limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of 
security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on this is not applicable to the 
Company. 
 

(iii) (a) During the year the Company has provided loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or any other parties as follows:  

 

Particulars Loans (Amount In INR 
Lakhs) 

Aggregate amount granted or provided (net) 
- Others 

 
2.24/- 

Balance Outstanding as at Balance sheet date in respect of above 
cases  

- Others 

 
 
321.99/- 

 
(b) During the year the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans to companies, firms, Limited 

Liability Partnerships or any other parties are not prejudicial to the Company's interest. 
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(c) The Company has granted loan or advances in the nature of loans during the year to companies 

which are interest free loans and repayment of principal has been stipulated. 

 
(d) There are no amounts of loans granted to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any 

other parties which are overdue for more than ninety days. 

 
(e) There were no loans granted to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other 

parties which was fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or extended or fresh loans 

granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.  

 
(f) The Company has granted loans repayable on demand to companies. The Company has not 

granted loans to promoters or related parties as defined in clause (76) of Section 2 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 

 
(iv) Loans, investments, guarantees and security in respect of which provisions of Sections 185 and 186 

of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable have been complied with by the Company.  
 

(v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which 
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the 
rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
(vi) The Company is not required to maintain cost records as specified by the Central Government 

under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act  
 

(vii) In respect of statutory dues: 
According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the records of the 
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Custom 
Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess, Goods and Services Tax and any other statutory dues 
with the appropriate authorities, wherever applicable. Provisions relating to Employees State 
Insurance are not applicable to the Company at present. 

(viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books 
of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. 
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.  
 

(ix) (a) The Company has not borrowed any amount from any lender. Accordingly, the requirement to 
report on clause 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.  
 
(b) The Company has not been declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
government or any government authority during the year.  
 
(c) The Company does not have any term loans. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 
3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company 
 
(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term purposes during the year by the Company.  
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(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not 
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its 
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the year.  
 
(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its 
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on clause 
(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company 
 

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer/further 
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.  
 
(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares/fully or 
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the 
requirement to report on clause 3(x) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.  
 

(xi) (a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the 
year.  
 
(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has 
been filed by secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT – 4 as prescribed under  
 
(c) The Company has not received any whistle-blower complaints during the year. Accordingly, the 
requirement to report on clause 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 

(xii) (a) to (c) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Therefore, the requirement to report on clauses 3(xii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable 
to the Company 
 

(xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of Companies 
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

 
(xiv) The provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

 
(xv) The Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with 

him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.  
 

(xvi)   (a) The provisions of Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not 
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi) (a) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company.  
 
(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without 
obtaining a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934.  
 
(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve 
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable 
to the Company.  
 
(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report 
on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
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(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses in the current financial year amouting to Rs. 8.66 lakhs and 
for the previous financial year amounting to Rs. 9.10 lakhs. 

 
(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly 

requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to 
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an 
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on 
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance 
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get 
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

 
(xx) The provisions of the Section 135 of the Act is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, 

requirement to report on Clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 
For J D Shah Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 109601W 
  
 
 
Jayesh D. Shah 
Partner 
M.No. 042167 
 
Place: Mumbai         
Date:  30/05/2022 
UDIN: 22042167AJXPXA594  
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IND RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED 

(Formerly Known as Vakharia Power Infrastructure Limited) 

CIN: L40102MH2011PLC221715 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2022 
 

Rupees in Lakhs 

 
Particulars 

 
Schedules 

As on As on 

3/31/2022 3/31/2021 

ASSETS    

I Non - current assets    

a)  Property, Plant and Equipment  - - 

b)   Right to use asset  - - 

c)  Other intangible assets  - - 

d)   Financial assets    

i)  Investments  - - 

ii)  Others  - - 

e)   Deferred tax asset (net)  - - 

f) Other non-current assets 2 0.79 - 

  0.79 - 

II Current assets    

a)  Inventories  - - 

b)   Financial assets    

i)  Trade receivables  - - 

i)  Cash and cash equivalents 3 0.69 0.16 

iii)  Loans 4 321.99 319.75 

iv)  Others  - - 

c)  Current tax assets (net)  - - 

d)   Other current assets 2 10.60 10.46 

  333.28 330.37 

    

TOTAL ASSETS (I + II)  334.07 330.37 

 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

   

I Equity    

a)  Equity share capital 5 302.74 302.74 

b)   Other equity 6 16.57 25.23 

  319.30 327.97 

II Liabilities    

1 Non - current liabilities    

a)  Financial liabilities    

i)  Borrowings 7 - - 

ii)  Others  - - 

b)   Lease liability  - - 

c)  Provisions  - - 

d)   Deferred tax liabilities (net)  - - 

  - - 

2 Current liabilities    

a)  Financial liabilities    

i)  Borrowings 7 12.92 1.94 

ii)  Trade payables 8   

A)  Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  - - 

B)    Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small    

enterprises  1.06 - 

iii)  Other financial liabilities  - - 

b)   Lease liability  - - 

c)  Provisions  - - 

d)   Other current liabilities 9 0.79 0.46 

  14.77 2.41 

TOTAL LIABILITIES (1 + 2)  14.77 2.41 

    

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (I + II)  334.07 330.37 

Significant accounting policies 1 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 

 
As per our report of even date 

For J D Shah Associates For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Chartered Accountants of Ind Renewable Energy Limited 

FRN: 109601W 

 

 

 
Jayesh D. Shah Nirmal H Shah Abhay Gupta 

Partner Chief Financial Officer Director 

M.No. 042167 (DIN: 02294699) 
 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30/05/2022 

UDIN: 22042167AJXPXA5945 

 

 

 

Abhishek Gour Anupam Gupta 

Company Secretary Managing Director 

(DIN: 02294687) 

 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30/05/2022 
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IND RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED 

(Formerly Known as Vakharia Power Infrastructure Limited) 

CIN: L40102MH2011PLC221715 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

Rupees in Lakhs 

Particulars Schedules 3/31/2022 3/31/2021 

Revenue from operations  - - 

Other income 10 5.59 0.20 

Total income (A)  5.59 0.20 

 

EXPENSES 

   

Operating costs  - - 

Changes in inventories  - - 

Employee benefit expense 11 2.64 3.73 

Finance cost 12 0.07 0.00 

Depreciation and amortisation  - - 

Other expenses 13 11.54 5.57 

Total expenses (B)  14.25 9.30 

 

Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (A - B) 

  

(8.66) 

 

(9.10) 

Exceptional item  - - 

Profit / (loss) before tax  (8.66) (9.10) 

 

Tax expense: 

   

a Current tax  - - 

b Deferred tax  - - 

Profit / (loss) for the period after tax (C)  (8.66) (9.10) 

 

Other comprehensive income 

   

a Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  - - 

b Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to  - - 

profit or loss    

c Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss  - - 

d Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit  - - 

or loss    

Total other comprehensive income / (expense) for the year net (D)    

of taxes  - - 
    

Total comprehensive income for the period (C + D)  (8.66) (9.10) 

 

Earnings per equity share (face value of Rs. 10) 

   

a Basic EPS  (0.29) (0.30) 

b Diluted EPS  (0.29) (0.30) 

Significant accounting policies 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 

1  

As per our report of even date 

For J D Shah Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 109601W 

 
For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 

of Ind Renewable Energy Limited 

 

 
Jayesh D. Shah 

Partner 

Nirmal H Shah 

Chief Financial Officer 

Abhay Gupta 

Director 

M.No. 042167  (DIN: 02294699) 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30/05/2022 

UDIN: 22042167AJXPXA5945 

 

 

Abhishek Gour 

 

 

Anupam Gupta 

 Company Secretary Managing Director 

(DIN: 02294687) 

 
Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30/05/2022 
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IND RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED 

(Formerly Known as Vakharia Power Infrastructure Limited) 

CIN: L40102MH2011PLC221715 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
 

 

Rupees in Lakhs 

Particulars 
 

For the year 2021-22 For the year 2020-21 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES    

Profit before tax A (8.66) (9.10) 

Add:   Non Cash / non operating Items    

Depreciation  - - 

Provision for forseeable losses  - - 

Finance Costs  0.07 0.00 

 B 0.07 0.00 

Less: Non Operating Items 
   

Interest on income tax refund  -  

Interest income from investment  - - 

 C - - 

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Change (A+B-C) (8.59) (9.10) 

(Increase) / Decrease in Trade & Other Receivable 
   

Other non-current assets  (0.79) - 

Trade receivables  - 2.07 

Loans & Advances  (2.24) 16.00 

Other current assets  (0.14) (0.63) 

Increase / (Decrease) in Current Liabilities & Provision    

Trade payables  1.06 (0.48) 

Other Liabilities & Provisions  0.33 (4.12) 

Cash Generated From Operations  (10.38) 3.74 

Less: Taxes Paid  - - 

Net cash generated from Operating Activities (D) (10.38) 3.74 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVTIES 
   

Investment in fixed assets  - - 

Investment in Intangible assets  - - 

Investment in Shares  - - 

Investment in bank deposits  - - 

Interest Income  - - 

Net cash used in Investing Activities (E) - - 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
   

Capital introduced  - - 

Increase / (Decrease) in Long Term Borrowings  - - 

Increase / (Decrease) in Short Term Borrowings  10.98 (4.35) 

Lease payment principal  - - 

Interest on lease liability  - - 

Finance cost  (0.07) (0.00) 

Net cash used in Financing Activities (F) 10.90 (4.35) 

Net Increase In Cash And Cash Equivalents (D+E+F) 0.53 (0.61) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  0.16 0.78 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  0.69 0.16 
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Components of cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars For the year 2021-22 For the year 2020-21 

Balances with banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalents) 

Cash in hand 

0.64 

0.05 

0.11 

0.05 

Total 0.69 0.16 

 
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars 
For the year 2021-22 For the year 2020-21 

Cash and cash equivalents as per above 

Cash and cash equivalents as note 3 of balance sheet 

0.69 

0.69 

0.16 

0.16 

 

As per our report of even date 

 
For J D Shah Associates For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Chartered Accountants of Ind Renewable Energy Limited 

FRN: 109601W 

 

 
 

Jayesh D. Shah 

Partner 

Nirmal H Shah 

Chief Financial Officer 

Abhay Gupta 

Director 

M.No. 042167  (DIN: 02294699) 

Place: Mumbai 
  

Date: 30/05/2022   

 
Abhishek Gour 

Company Secretary 

Anupam Gupta 

Managing Director 

  (DIN: 02294687) 

 
Place: Mumbai 

 

 Date: 30/05/2022  



31 

 

IND RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED 

(Formerly Known as Vakharia Power Infrastructure Limited) 

CIN: L40102MH2011PLC221715 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 

 
2 Other current asset 

 

 

 

 
 

Rupees in Lakhs 

Particulars 3/31/2022 3/31/2021 

Non current 

Advances other than capital advance 

Security deposits 

Total 

 

 
0.79 

 

 
- 

0.79 - 

Current 

Balance with revenue authorities 

Other receivables 

 

10.59 

0.01 

 

10.45 

0.01 

Total 10.60 10.46 

 

3 Cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars 3/31/2022 3/31/2021 

Balances with banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalents) 

Cash in hand 

0.64 

0.05 

0.11 

0.05 

Total 0.69 0.16 

 

4 Loans (current) 

Particulars 3/31/2022 3/31/2021 

Others 

Unsecured and considered good 

Loan to others 

 

 
321.99 

 

 
319.75 

Total 321.99 319.75 

 

4.1 Loan to others are the interest bearing loan given in the normal course of business 
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IND RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED 

(Formerly Known as Vakharia Power Infrastructure Limited) 

CIN: L40102MH2011PLC221715 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 

 
5 Equity share capital 

 

 

 

 

Rupees in Lakhs 

Particulars 3/31/2022 3/31/2021 

Authorised share capital 

1,00,00,000 (1,00,00,000)equity shares of Rs. 10 each 

 

 
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital 

30,27,360 (30,27,360) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 

 
1,000.00 

 
1,000.00 

1,000.00 1,000.00 

 

 
302.74 

 

 
302.74 

 

5.1 Reconciliation of the Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting period 

Particulars 
3/31/2022 31/03/2021 

No. of shares Rs No. of shares Rs 

At the beginning of the period 3,027,360.00 302.74 3,027,360.00 302.74 

Issued during the period - - - - 

Outstanding at the end of the period 3,027,360.00 302.74 3,027,360.00 302.74 

 

5.2 Rights and Restrictions of the Equity Share Holders 

Following are the rights attached to 30,27,360 equity shares; 

1. Right to receive dividend as may be approved by Board/Annual General Meeting 

2. Right to attend the Annual General Meeting of the Company and right to vote. 

Apart from the above, the Equity Shares rank pari passu and are subject to the rights preference and restrictions under the 

Companies Act. 

 
5.3 There are Nil number of shares (Previous year Nil) in respect of each class in the company held by its holding company or its 

ultimate holding company including shares held by or subsidiary or associates of the holding company including shares held by 

or by subsidiary or associates of the holding company or the ultimate holding company in aggregate 

 

5.4 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company 

Name of shareholders 
3/31/2022 31/03/2021 

No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding 

Abhay Narain Gupta 

Anupam Narain Gupta 

213,263 

221,564 

7.04% 

7.32% 

213,263 

221,564 

7.04% 

7.32% 

 

5.5 There are Nil number of shares (Previous year Nil) reserved for issue under option and contract/commitment for the sale of 

shares/disinvestment including the terms and amounts 

 
5.6 For the period of five years immediately preceeding the date as at which the balance sheet is prepared 

Particulars No. of Shares 

Aggregate number and class of shares alloted as fully paid up pursant to contract(s) without payment 

being received in cash 

 
Nil 

Aggregate number and class of shares alloted as fully paid up by way of bonus Nil 

Aggregate number and class of shares bought back Nil 

 

5.7 There are no securities (Previous Year Nil) convertible into Equity/Preferential Shares. 

5.8 There are no calls unpaid (Previous Year Nil) including calls unpaid by Directors and Officers as on balance sheet date. 

5.9 There is no change in number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year. 
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IND RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED 

(Formerly Known as Vakharia Power Infrastructure Limited) 

CIN: L40102MH2011PLC221715 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

 

6 Other equity 

Particulars 3/31/2022 3/31/2021 

Retained earnings   

Balance at the beginning of the year 25.23 34.33 

Profit/(loss) for the period (8.66) (9.10) 

Balance at the end of the year 16.57 25.23 

   

Total other equity 16.57 25.23 

 

7 Borrowings 

Particulars 3/31/2022 3/31/2021 

Current 

Loan from related parties 

 
12.92 

 
1.94 

Total 12.92 1.94 

 
7.1 Loan from related parties is interest free loan and repayable on demand 

 

9 Other current liabilities 

Particulars 3/31/2022 3/31/2021 

Statutory Dues Payable 0.12 0.04 

Expenses Payable 0.67 0.42 

Other Payable 0.01 0.01 

Total 0.79 0.46 
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IND RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED 

(Formerly Known as Vakharia Power Infrastructure Limited) 

CIN: L40102MH2011PLC221715 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

 

Rupees in Lakhs 

5.10 Shares Held by Promoters 

Current Reporting Period 

Sr No. Promotor's Name No of shares % of total shares % Change during the year 

1 Abhay Narain Gupta 213,263 7.04% - 

2 Anupam Narain Gupta 221,564 7.32% - 

 

Previous reporting Period 

Sr No. Promotor's Name No of shares % of total shares % Change during the year 

1 Abhay Narain Gupta 213,263 7.04%  

2 Anupam Narain Gupta 221,564 7.32%  

3 Kantilal V. Vakharia (HUF) 32,400 1.07%  
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IND RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED 

(Formerly Known as Vakharia Power Infrastructure Limited) 

CIN: L40102MH2011PLC221715 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

 

Rupees in Lakhs 

8 TRADE PAYABLES 

 
Figures For the Current Reporting Period 

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of 

payment 

 

Less than 1 

Year 

1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 

Years 

Total 

MSME - - - - - 

Others 1.06 - - - 1.06 

Dispute dues-MSME - - - - - 

Dispute dues - - - - - 

Others - - - - - 

Total     1.06 

 

Figures For Previous Reporting Period 

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of 

payment 

 

Less than 1 

Year 

1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 

Years 

Total 

MSME - - - - - 

Others - - - - - 

Dispute dues-MSME - - - - - 

Dispute dues - - - - - 

Others - - - - - 

Total     - 
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IND RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED 

(Formerly Known as Vakharia Power Infrastructure Limited) 

CIN: L40102MH2011PLC221715 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 

 
10 Other income 

 

 

 

 

Rupees in Lakhs 

Particulars 3/31/2022 3/31/2021 

Interest received 

- On Loan 

- Others Income 

 

5.59 

- 

 

- 

0.20 

Total 5.59 0.20 

 

11 Employee Benefit Expense 

Particulars 3/31/2022 3/31/2021 

Salary and wages 2.64 3.73 

Total 2.64 3.73 

 

12 Finance cost 

Particulars 3/31/2022 3/31/2021 

Bank Charges 

Interest on 

- Late payment of statutory dues 

0.07 

 
- 

- 

 
0.00 

Total 0.07 0.00 

 

13 Other expenses 

Particulars 3/31/2022 3/31/2021 

Audit Fees 0.25 0.25 

Advertisement expenses 0.49 0.10 

ROC Filing Fees 8.56 - 

Rent 1.49 - 

Prior Period Expenses 0.11 - 

Registry Maintenance Expenses 0.64 - 

Annual Listing Fees - 3.00 

Bank charges & commission - 0.01 

Legal and Professional Charges - 0.92 

Miscellaneous Expenses - 1.30 

Total 11.54 5.57 

 

13.1 Payment to Auditor 

- Statutory Audit 0.25 0.25 

14 Earning per share (EPS) 

Particulars 3/31/2022 3/31/2021 

Net profit/(loss) for calculation of basic and diluted EPS (8.66) (9.10) 

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic and 3,027,360 3,027,360 

diluted EPS (No.)   

Basic Earnings Per Share (Rs.) (0.29) (0.30) 

Diluted Earnings Per Share (Rs.) (0.29) (0.30) 
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IND RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED 

(Formerly Known as Vakharia Power Infrastructure Limited) 

CIN: L40102MH2011PLC221715 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

Rupees in Lakhs 
 

A. Equity Share Capital 

Particulars 3/31/2022 3/31/2021 

Balance at the beginning of the reporting 

year 

 

302.74 

 

302.74 

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to 

prior period errors 

 

- 

 

- 

Related Balance at the beginning of the 

current reporting periuod 

 

- 

 

- 

Changes in Equity Share Capital during the 

current year 

 

- 

 

- 

Balance at the end of the current 

reporting period 

 

302.74 

 

302.74 

 
B. Other Equity 

 

 

 
Particulars 

Reserves and Surplus  

 

 
Total 

 

 
Retained Earnings 

Other 

Comprehansive 

Income 

Balance as at April 1,2020 34.33 - 34.33 

Changes in accounting policy or prior 

period errors 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

Restated balance at the beginning of the 

reporting period 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 

 

(9.10) 

 

- 

 

(9.10) 

Dividends - - - 

Transfer to retained earnings - - - 

Bargain purchase gain - - - 

Balance as at March 31,2021 25.23 - 25.23 

    

Balance as at April 1,2021 25.23 - 25.23 

Changes in accounting policy or prior 

period errors 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

Restated balance at the beginning of the 

reporting period 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 

 

(8.66) 

 

- 

 

(8.66) 

Dividends - - - 

Transfer to retained earnings - - - 

Bargain purchase gain - - - 

Balance as at March 31,2022 16.57 - 16.57 
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IND RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED 

(Formerly Known as Vakharia Power Infrastructure Limited) 

CIN: L40102MH2011PLC221715 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

 

15 Capital commitments, other commitments and contingent liabilities 

 

15.1 Capital and other commitments 

There are no capital commitments as at 31st March 2022 (Previous year: Rs. Nil). 

 

15.2 Contingent liabilities 

There are no contingent liabilities and commitments outstanding as on year end 

 

16 Related Party 

Names of related parties and related party relationship 

 

I Details of related parties: 

 

Description of relationship Names of related parties 

Key Management Personnel Anupam Gupta 

Abhay Gupta 

Nirmal H Shah 

Abhishek Gour 

Entities where KMP has significant 

influence exists 

Pro Fin Capital Services Limited 

 Asian Fintrade Services Private Limited 

Asian Commtrade Private Limited 

Triyamb Securities Private Limited 

Koshika Bioscience Private Limited 

Milgrey Finance And Investments Limited 
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II Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year 

 

Name Particulars 
Amount 

(FY 2021-22) 

Amount 

(FY 2020-21) 

Transactions with Related party 

Abhay Gupta 

Abhishek Gour 

 

Loan received 

Salary 

 

10.98 

2.64 

 

1.94 

3.73 

Balance with related parties 

Balance payable 

Abhay Gupta 

 

12.92 

 

1.94 

 

17 DISCLOSURE REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 22 OF THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES 

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 

The Company has no amounts payable to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under in the Section 7(1) of the Micro, 

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('the MSMED Act, 2006) and no interest has been paid during 

the year or is payable under the terms of the MSMED Act, 2006. These dues have been determined to the extent such 

parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the Managment. This has been relied upon by the 

auditors. 
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18 Segment reporting 

Based on the “management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 – Operating Segments, the directors evaluates the 

Companies performance based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segment. Companies 

whole business is being considered as one segment. 

 

19 Disclosures as required under Indian Accounting Standard 19 'Employee benefits' 

Provision for gratuity is not made in accounts as none of the employees is eligible for the same. 

 

20 Disclosure in movement of provision as required by Indian Accounting Standard 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities 

and Contingent Assets’ 

Provisions are recognized when the Company recognizes that it has a present obligation as a result of past events, it is 

more likely that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reasonably 

estimated. 

 
Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer 

probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. 

 

21  Foreign currency exposure outstanding as at year end Nil (P.Y. Nil). There are no outstanding derivative contracts as at 

year end (P.Y. Nil). 
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IND RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED 

(Formerly Known as Vakharia Power Infrastructure Limited) 

CIN: L40102MH2011PLC221715 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

 

22 Financial Instruments 

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories are as follows 

Rupees in Lakhs 

Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 

At amortised 

cost 

At cost Total carrying 

value 

Total fair value At amortised cost At cost Total carrying 

value 

Total fair value 

Financial assets 

Investments 

Other current assets 

Trade receivables 

Cash and cash equivalents 

 

- 

321.99 

 
0.69 

 

- 

- 

- 

- 

 

- 

321.99 

- 

0.69 

 

- 

321.99 

- 

0.69 

 

- 

319.75 

- 

0.16 

 

- 

- 

- 

- 

 

- 

319.75 

- 

0.16 

 

- 

319.75 

- 

0.16 

Total 322.68 - 322.68 322.68 319.91 - 319.91 319.91 

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings 

Others 

Trade payables 

 

12.92 

- 

1.06 

 

- 

- 

- 

 

12.92 

- 

1.06 

 

12.92 

- 

1.06 

 

1.94 

- 

- 

 

- 

- 

- 

 

1.94 

- 

- 

 

1.94 

- 

- 

Total 13.98 - 13.98 13.98 1.94 - 1.94 1.94 
 

23 Fair value hierarchy 

 
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e as prices) or indirectly (i.e derived from prices). 
Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

 

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of 31/03/2021 : 

Rupees in Lakhs 

 

Particulars 
As at 

31/03/2021 

 

Fair value measurement at end of the reporting 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Assets:     

Investments - - - - 

Other current assets 319.75 - - 319.75 

Trade receivables - - - - 

Cash and cash equivalents 0.16 0.16 - - 

Liabilities    - 

Borrowings     

Trade payables - - - - 

 

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of 31/03/2022 : 

Rupees in Lakhs 

Particulars 
As at 

31/03/2022 

Fair value measurement at end of the reporting 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Assets:     

Investments - - - - 

Other current assets 321.99 - - 321.99 

Trade receivables - - - - 

Cash and cash equivalents 0.69 0.69 - - 

Liabilities    - 

Trade payables 1.06 - - 1.06 
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24 Risk Management 

The risk management policies of the Company are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor 

risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Companie's activities. 

The Management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Companie's risk management framework. 

In performing its operating, investing and financing activities, the Company is exposed to the Credit risk, Liquidity risk and Market risk. 

 

Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risks: 

interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans, borrowings and 

investments. 

 
Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the 

Companie's receivables from customers and investments 
 

Investments 

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by generally investing in counterparties that have a good credit rating. The Company does not expect any losses from non- 

performance by these counter-parties. 

 
Balances with banks and other financial assets 

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of Rs 0.69 lakhs as on 31/03/2022. The cash and cash equivalents are held with banks with good credit ratings. For other financial 

assets, the Company assesses and manages credit risk based on reasonable and supportive forward looking information. The Company does not have significant credit risk 

exposure for these items. 

 

Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. 

The Company has fixed interest bearing investments and fixed interest bearing borrowings. Hence the Company does not face any interest rate risk. 
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Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or other financial 

assets. The Companie's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal 

and stressed condition, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Companie's reputation 

 

The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding 

 
The following table analysis financial liabilities of remaining contractual maturities: 

 

 

As at 31/03/2021 

 

Carrying value 
Total contractual 

cash outflow 

 

Expected timing of contractual cash flows 

   Less than 1 year 1 year to 2 years 2 years to 5 years Over 5 years 

Financial liabilities       

Borrowings      - 

- Debentures - - - - - - 

-Loans Non Current - - - - - - 

-Loans Current 1.94 1.94 1.94 - - - 

Retention money - - - - - - 

Trade payables - - - - - - 

 

Rupees in Lakhs 

 
 

As at 31/03/2022 

 
 

Carrying value 

 

Total contractual 

cash outflow 

 

Expected timing of contractual cash flows 

Less than 1 year 1 year to 2 years 2 years to 5 years Over 5 years 

Financial liabilities       

Borrowings      - 

- Debentures - - - - - - 

-Loans Non Current - - - - - - 

-Loans Current 12.92 12.92 10.98 1.94 - - 

Retention money - - - - - - 

Trade payables 1.06 1.06 1.06 - - - 

 

 
Capital management 

For the purpose of the Companie's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and other equity reserves attributable to the equity shareholders. The Company 

manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital 

structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital gearing ratio, which is fixed cost bearing funds 

divided by common stockholder's equity. 

Rupees in Lakhs 

Particulars As at 31/03/2022 As at 31/03/2021 

Common stockholder's equity 

Total equity 

 

319.30 

 

327.97 

Total (A) 319.30 327.97 

 

Fixed cost bearing funds 

  

Borrowings (including other financial liabilities) 12.92 1.94 

Less: Cash and Cash equivalents 0.69 0.16 

Total (B) 13.61 2.11 

   

Capital Gearing Ratio (B/A) 0.04 0.01 

 

25 Income tax 

 

The major components of income tax expense for the years are: 

Rupees in Lakhs 

Particulars As at 31/03/2022 As at 31/03/2021 

Current income tax:   

Current income tax charge - - 

Adjustments in respect of previous year - - 

Deferred tax: 
  

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences - - 

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss - - 

 

The reconciliation between the provision of income tax of the Company and amounts computed by applying the Indian statutory income tax rate to profit before taxes is as follows: 

 

Particulars As at 31/03/2022 As at 31/03/2021 

Profit before income tax (8.66) (9.10) 

Rate of income tax 26.00% 26.00% 

Computed expected tax expenses (2.25) (2.37) 

Tax effect due to non-deductible expenses - - 

Tax effect due to deductible expenses - - 

Effect of Non recognition of current year DTA 2.25 2.37 

Current tax - - 

 

Deferred Tax asset on losses are not recognised in view of absence of virtual certainty as regards to future taxable profits. 
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IND RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED 

(Formerly Known as Vakharia Power Infrastructure Limited) 

CIN: L40102MH2011PLC221715 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 

 

26 In the opinion of the management; current assets, loans, advances and deposits are approximately of the value 

stated, if realized in the ordinary course of business. The provision of all known liabilities is adequate and not in 

excess of the amount reasonably necessary. 

 

27 Balances of certain advances are subject to confirmations / reconciliation and consequential adjustments, if any. 

The management does not expect any material difference affecting the current year’s Financial Statements on 

such reconciliation / adjustments. 
 

28 Previous year figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary to confirm with the current year 

presentation. 
 

As per our report of even date For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 

For J D Shah Associates of Ind Renewable Energy Limited 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 109601W 

 

 

 

Jayesh D. Shah Nirmal H Shah Abhay Gupta 

Partner Chief Financial Officer Director 

M.No. 042167 (DIN: 02294699) 
 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30/05/2022 

UDIN: 22042167AJXPXA5945 

 

 

 
 

Abhishek Gour Anupam Gupta 

Company Secretary Managing Director 

(DIN: 02294687) 

 
Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30/05/2022 
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IND RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED 

(Formerly Known as Vakharia Power Infrastructure Limited) 

CIN: L40102MH2011PLC221715 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 
 

 

Additional Disclosures required as per the Companies Act, 2013 Rupees in Lakhs 

 
1 Title deeds of immovable Property not held in name of the Company 

 

Relevant line iteams in the Balance 

sheets 

Descriptions of Iteam of property Gross carrying Value Title deeds of 

immovable 

Property not 

held in name of 

the Company 

Wheather title deed 

holder is a promotor, 

director or relative of 

Promotor' director or 

employee of 

promotors/ director 

Property held since 

which date 

Reason for not being held in the name of 

company 

NIL 

 
Where the Company has revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment, the company shall disclose as to whether the revaluation is based on the valuation by a registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of the 

2 Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017 

The Company has not revalued any property, plant and equipments. Hence, no reporting is required under this clause 

 
3 

Where Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013,) either severally or jointly with any other person, that are: 

(a) repayable on demand or 

(b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment 

 

Type of Borrower 
Amount of loan and Advance in the 

nature of Loan outstanding 

Percentage to the total Loans 

and Advances in the nature of 

loans 

Promotors 

Directors 

KMPs 

Related Parties 

 

NIL 

 

NIL 

 
4 

Capital Work In Progress (CWIP) 

(a) For Capital-work-in progress, following ageing schedule shall be given 

 

CWIP 

Amount in CWIP for a period of  

Total 
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 Years More than 3 years 

Projects in progress 
Projects temporarily suspended 

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

(b) For capital-work-in progress, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan, following 

CWIP 
To be Completed in 

Total 
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 Years More than 3 years 

Project 1 

Project 2 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 
5 

Intangible assets under development: 

(a) For Intangible assets under development 

Instangible Assets under 

Development 

Amount in CWIP for a period of 
Total 

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 Years More than 3 years 

Project 1 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Project 2 

 

(b) Intangible assets under development completion schedule 

Instangible Assets under 

Development 

To be Completed in 
Total 

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 Years More than 3 years 

Project 1 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Project 2 

 
6 

Details of Benami Property held : 

The company does not hold any benami property 
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7 
Where the Company has borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of current assets: 

(a) whether quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of 

accounts. 

(b) if not, summary of reconciliation and reasons of material discrepancies, if any to be adequately disclosed 

 

 

 
Not Applicable 

 
8 

Wilful Defaulter 

The Company is not a declared itself as a defaulter 

 
9 

Relationship with Struck off Companies 

 

Where the company has any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956, the Company shall disclose the following details:- 

 

 

 

Name of struck off Company 

 

Nature of transactions with struck- 

off Company 

 

 

Balance outstanding 

Relationship with 

the Struck off 

company, if any, 

to be disclosed 

 

 

NIL 

Investments in securities   

Receivables   

Payables   

Shares held by struck-off Company   

Other outstanding balances (to be 
specified 

  

 
10 

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies 

Where any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period, details and reasons thereof shall be 

disclosed. No 

 
11 

Compliance with number of layers of companies 

Where the company has not complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) 

Rules, 2017, the name and CIN of the companies beyond the specified layers and the relationship/extent of holding of the company in such downstream companies shall be 

disclosed. 

Not Applicable 

 
12 

Ratios 

 

Ratios 

 

Numerator 

 

Denominator 
Current 

Reporting Period 

Previous reporting 

period 

 

% of Change 

 

Remarks 

 
 

Current Ratio 

 
 

Current Assets 

 
 

Current Liabilities 

 
 

22.57 

 
 

137.32 

 
 

-83.56% 

Increase in Loans and Advances, Short 

Term Borrowings and Trade Payables is 

the reason there is major variance in ratio 

 

Debt Equity Ratio 

 

Debt Capital 

 

Shareholder's Equity 

 

0.04 

 

0.01 

 

583.34% 
Increase in Short Term Borrowings is the 

reason there is major variance in ratio 

 

Debt Service coverage ratio 

 

EBITDA-CAPEX 

 

Debt Service (Int+Principal) 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

Short Term Borrowings are interest free 

loans repayable on demand. So this ratio 

is not applicable. 

Return on Equity Ratio Profit for the year Average Shareholder’s Equity -2.68% -2.74% -2.19% 
 

 

Inventory Turnover Ratio 

 

COGS 

 

Average Inventory 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 
The Company does not have any 

inventory so this ratio is not applicable 

 

Trade Receivables turnover ratio 

 

Net Sales 

 

Average trade receivables 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

The Company does not have any Sales or 

Trade Receivables so this ratio is not 

applicable 

 

Trade payables turnover ratio 

Total Purchases (Fuel Cost + Other 

Expenses+Closing Inventory-Opening 

Inventory) 

 

Average Trade Payables 

 

10.90 

 

11.68 

 

-6.69% 

 

Net capital turnover ratio Sales Working capital (CA-CL) - - - 
The Company does not have any Sales so 

this ratio is not applicable 

Net profit ratio Net Profit Sales - - - 
The Company does not have any Sales so 
this ratio is not applicable 

Return on Capital employed Earnings before interest and tax Capital Employed -2.69% -2.77% -3.03%  

Return on investment Net Profit Investment -2.71% -2.78% -2.22%  

 
13 

Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements 

Where any Scheme of Arrangements has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company shall disclose 

that the effect of such Scheme of Arrangements have been accounted for in the books of account of the Company ‘in accordance with the Scheme’ and ‘in accordance with NA 

accounting standards’ and deviation in this regard shall be explained 

 
14 

Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium: NA 

 
15 

There have been no transactions carried out in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the year, neither the Company holds any balances in the same. 
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NOTICE 

Notice is hereby given that the 11th Annual General Meeting of the Members of IND Renewable 

Energy Limited (Formerly Known as Vakharia Power infrastructure Limited) will be held on 

Friday, 30th September 2022, at the registered office of the Company at M Urdu School, Commet 

BLDG, Turner Road, Opp. Bandra Talav, Nr Price Copper House, Bandra W Mumbai 400050 at 

12.00 to transact the following business: 

 

Ordinary business 

1) To receive, consider and adopt the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for 
the Financial year ended 31st March 2022, the report of the Directors and the Auditors 
thereon. 

2) To appoint a director in place of Mr. Abhay Narain Gupta (Din- 02294699) who retires by 
rotation and being eligible offers himself for re appointment. 
 

Special business 

 

Date : 08.09.2021     By order of the Board of Directors 

Place: Mumbai     (Anupam Narain Gupta) 

        Managing Director 

 Din: 02294687 

 

 

 

 

 

IMPORTANT NOTES: 

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE 11th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IS 
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE 
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING PROXY 
SHOULD HOWEVER BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 
FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING i.e. 30th September 2022.  
 
A PERSON CAN ACT AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY AND HOLDING 
IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE 
COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE 
TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A SINGLE 
PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR 
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SHAREHOLDER.THE PROXY HOLDER SHALL PROVE HIS/HER IDENTITY AT THE TIME OF ATTENDING 
THE MEETING.  

 
2. An instrument appointing proxy is valid only if it is properly stamped as per the applicable law. 
Blank or incomplete, unstamped or inadequately stamped, undated proxies or proxies upon 
which the stamps have not been cancelled, will be considered as invalid. If the Company receives 
multiple proxies for the same holdings of a Member, the proxy which is dated last will be 
considered as valid. If such multiple proxies are not dated or they bear the same date without 
specific mention of time, all such proxies shall be considered as invalid.  

 
3. The proxy-holder shall provide identity proof at the time of attending the Meeting  

 
4. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting together, only such joint holder who is higher in 
the order  

 
5. Members seeking any information or clarification on the Annual Report 2021-22 are requested 
to send written queries to the Company, at least twenty-four hours before the date of the 
Meeting to enable the Company to compile the information and provide replies at the Meeting.  

 
6. Members/ proxies are requested to bring their copies of Annual Report along with duly filed 
and signed attendance sheets attached with it for attending the meeting.  

 
7. Members / proxies / authorized representatives should bring duly filled Attendance Slip 
enclosed herewith along with a valid identify proof such as PAN card, passport, AADHAAR card, 
or driving license to enter the venue and attend the Meeting.  

 
8. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting 
are requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their 
representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.  

 
9. Members desirous of getting any information about the accounts and operations of the 
Company are requested to address their query to the Secretary at the Registered Office well in 
advance so that the same may reach him at least 10 days before the date of the meeting to enable 
the Management to keep the required information readily available at the meeting.  

 
10. Members are requested to notify the Company of any change in their address (in full) with the 
postal area pin code number, quoting their folio numbers.  

 
11. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 10 of 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 The Register of Members and Share 
Transfer Register of the Company will remain closed from 24th September, 2022 to 30th 
September, 2022 (both days inclusive) for purpose of 11th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company.  

 
12. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order 
of names will be entitled to vote.  
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13. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are open for inspection by the 
members at the Registered Office of the Company during the business hours on all working days, 
up to the date of the Meeting.  

 
14. Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding 
in the same order of names are requested to send the share certificates to RTA, for consolidation 
into a single folio.  

 
15. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent 
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in 
electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their Depository Participants with 
whom they are maintaining their demat accounts.  

 
Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company/ 
Registrars and Transfer Agents.  

 
16. Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register their 
e-mail address for receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices, etc. from the 
Company electronically. Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to ensure to 
keep their email addresses updated with the Depository Participants. Members holding shares in 
physical mode are also requested to update their e-mail addresses by writing to the Registrar and 
Transfer Agent of the Company at the address mentioned below quoting their folio number(s).  

 
“Link Intime India Private Limited C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S.Marg, Vikhroli (W), Mumbai – 400 083 
Tel: 022-49186270 
 
17. The Company does not give gifts, gift coupons or cash in lieu of gifts to its Members and also 
does not offer its products at discounted rates. The Company also does not organize any plant 
visits for its Members. However, the Company is committed to the Members’ wealth 
maximization through superior performance reflected in corporate benefits like dividend and 
increased market capitalization.  

 
18. Pursuant to Sections 101 and 136 of the Act read with the relevant Rules made thereunder 
and Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, companies can send Annual Reports and other communications through electronic mode 
to those Members who have registered their e-mail addresses either with the Company or with 
the Depository. Accordingly, the Notice of the Meeting along with the Annual Report 2021- 22 is 
being sent by electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the 
Company/ Depository, unless a Member has requested for a physical copy of the same. For 
Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses, physical copies are being sent through 
permitted modes.  

 
19. Members may note that the Notice of the Meeting and the Annual Report 2021-22 is available 
on the Company’s website www.indrenewable.com and also on the website of National Securities 
Depository Limited (NSDL) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com. The physical copies of the same will also 
be available at the Company’s registered office for inspection during the business hours on 
working days except Saturdays and Sundays up to the date of the Meeting i.e. 30th September, 
2022.  
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20. Pursuant to Section 108 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act read with the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended and Regulation 44 of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a facility is provided to 
the Members to cast their votes using an electronic voting system from a place other than venue 
of the Meeting (“remote e-voting”) in respect of the resolutions proposed in this Notice.  

 
21. A facility for voting by Poll or otherwise will also be made available to the Members attending 
the Meeting and who have not already cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to the Meeting. 
Members who have cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to the Meeting may attend the 
Meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their votes at the meeting.  

 
22. Voting Rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of equity shares registered in the name 
of the Members as on the cut-off date i.e. Friday, September 23, 2022. A person, whose name is 
recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of beneficial owners (in case of electronic 
shareholding) maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date, i.e. Friday, September 23, 
2022, only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting provided at the Meeting.  

 
23. The remote e-voting period commences on Tuesday, 27th September, 2022 from 9:00 a.m. 
IST and ends on Thursday, 29th September, 2022 at 5:00 p.m. IST. During this period, Members 
holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on Friday, 23rd September, 
2022, may cast their vote electronically. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL 
thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the Member, the Member shall not be allowed 
to change it subsequently.  

 
24. Voting Results  

 
The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Mr. Lakshminarayan Krishnamoorthy, 
Practicing Company Secretaries, as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting including remote e-
voting process in a fair and transparent manner.  
 
25. The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion of voting at the Meeting will first count 
the votes cast at the Meeting and thereafter, unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in 
the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make a 
consolidated Scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favor or against, if any, to the Chairman 
or a Director or Company Secretary authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same 
and declare the result of the voting forthwith.  

 
26. Subject to the receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions shall be deemed to be 
passed on the date of the Meeting i.e. Friday, 30th September, 2022.  

 
27. Any person becoming a Member of the Company after the dispatch of the Notice of the 
Meeting and holds shares as on the cut-off date i.e Friday, September 23, 2022, may obtain the 
user ID and Password by sending a request to the abovementioned email ids and can exercise 
their voting rights through remote e-voting by following the instructions listed hereinabove or by 
voting facility provided at the meeting.  
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28. Further, pursuant to the provisions of section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Investor 
Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Amendment 
Rules, 2017 (“IEPF Rules”), all shares on which dividend has not been paid or claimed for seven 
consecutive years or more are required to be transferred to the IEPF Authority. Those Members, 
who have not enchased the dividend, are requested to ensure that they claim their unclaimed 
dividends, before it is transferred to the IEPF Authority.  

 
29. The Companies Act provides nomination facility to the members. As a member of the 
Company, you have an option to nominate any person as your nominee to whom your shares shall 
vest in the unfortunate event of your death. It is advisable to avail this facility especially by the 
members who currently hold shares in their single name. Nomination can avoid the process of 
acquiring any right in shares through transmission by law. In case of nomination for the shares 
held by the joint holders, such nomination will be effective only on death of all the holders. In 
case the shares are held in dematerialized form, the nomination form needs to be forwarded to 
your Depository Participant.  

 
30. As per Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) Notification No. SEBI/LAD-
NRO/GN/2018/24 dated 8th June, 2018 and further amendment vide Notification No. SEBI/LAD-
NRO/GN/2018/49 dated 30th November,2018, requests for effecting transfer of securities 
(except in case of transmission or transposition of securities) shall not be processed from 1st April, 
2019 unless the securities are held in the dematerialized form with the depositories. With the said 
changes which came into effect from 1st April, 2019, Equity Shares of the Company shall be 
eligible for transfer only in dematerialized form. Therefore, the Members are requested to take 
necessary actions to dematerialize their physical Equity Shares of the Company promptly  

 
31. Relevant Explanatory Statement pursuant to provisions of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 
2013, in respect of Special Business set out above is annexed hereto. The relevant details as 
required under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), of the person seeking appointment and re-
appointment as Director are set out in the Annexure to the Explanatory Statement.  

 
32. The Annual Report 2021-22 of the Company will be made available on the website of the 
Company at www.indrenewable.com.  

 
33. The route map showing directions to reach the venue of the 31st Annual General Meeting is 
annexed.  

 
34. In terms of provisions of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder, 
members have been provided with facility to cast their vote electronically, through the e-voting 
services, on all resolutions set forth in this notice.  

 
VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS  

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the 
Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 
05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the 
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business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an 
agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through 
electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using 
remote e-Voting system as well as venue voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL. 
 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:- 

 

The remote e-voting period begins on September 27,2022 at 09:00A.M. and ends on 

September 29,2022 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for 

voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / 

Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. September 23, 2022, may cast their 

vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in 

the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being September 23, 

2022. 

 

 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING 

GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER:- 

 

The remote e-voting period begins on September 27, 2022 at 09:00A.M. and ends on 

September 29, 2022 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL 

for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / 

Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. September 23, 2022, may cast their 

vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in 

the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being September 23, 

2022. 

 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 

mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 

mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 

through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts 

in order to access e-Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 
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Type of 

shareholders 

 Login Method 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding securities 

in demat mode 

with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL 

Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or 

on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the 

“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available 

under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to enter your 

existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, 

you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added 

services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting 

services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on 

company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and 

you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting 

your vote during the remote e-Voting period If you are not 

registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available 

at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for 

IDeAS Portal” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

2. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 

typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 

either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home 

page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 

which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new 

screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your 

sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), 

Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 

Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 

company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and 

you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting 

your vote during the remote e-Voting period.  

3. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App 

“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned 

below for seamless voting experience. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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Individual 

Shareholders 

holding securities 

in demat mode 

with CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login 

through their user id and password. Option will be made 

available to reach e-Voting page without any further 

authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or 

www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi. 

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able 

to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting 

service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote. 

3. If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register 

is available at 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 

providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in 

www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate 

the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 

recorded in the demat Account. After successful authentication, 

user will be provided links for the respective ESP i.e. NSDL 

where the e-Voting is in progress. 

Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding securities 

in demat mode) 

login through their 

depository 

participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 

through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for 

e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting 

option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL 

Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-

Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 

i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for 

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period  

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
http://www.cdslindia.com/
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use 

Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical 

issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 

990  and  1800 22 44 30 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 

23058738 or 022-23058542-43 

  

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
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B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders 

holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which 

is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and 

a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 

eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to 

Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 

 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 

(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 

Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** 

and Client ID is 12****** then your user 

ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 

12************** then your user ID is 

12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 

Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio 

Number registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** 

and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 

101456001*** 

 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing 

password to login and cast your vote. 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve 

the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your 

‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will 

force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, 

your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace 

the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and 

open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to 

open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits 

of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical 

form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in 

process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.  

 

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have 

forgotten your password: 

a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your 

demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) 

option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a 

request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio 

number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the 

votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on 

the check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which 

you are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-

Voting period. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the 

number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 

“Confirm” when prompted. 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on 

the confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 

scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. 

with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized 

to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to murti_1945@rediffmail.com with a copy marked to 

evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) 

can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by 

clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab 

in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 

utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be 

disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, 

you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset 

Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 

Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section 

of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30  or 

send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in  

 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 

procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the 

resolutions set out in this notice: 

 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, 

scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy 

of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 

ind.renewable01@gmail.com. 
2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + 

CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account 

statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested 

scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to ind.renewable01@gmail.com. If you are an Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login 

method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting for Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for 

procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 

through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 

Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their 

demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

 

 

Date: 08.09.2021                                               By order of the Board of Directors 

Place: Mumbai  Anupam Narain Gupta 

 Managing Director 

 Din: 02294687 

 

 

 

 

Brief Profile of Director being Re-appointed: 

Name Abhay Narain Gupta 

DIN 02294699 

Age 41 

Date of Appointment 31/08/2020 

Qualification HSC 

Other Directorship 1) Pro Fin Capital Services Limited 
2) Asian Commtrade Private Limited 
3) Asian Fintrade Services Private 

Limited 
4) Koshika Bioscience Private Limited 
5) Triyamb Securities Private Limited 
6) Milgrey Finance And Investments 

Limited 
 

Expertise Mr. Abhay Gupta has rich experience in 
financial market 

Chairman/member of 
committee of the Board of 
the Companies on which he 
/she is a Director 

1) Milgrey Finance And Investments 
Limited 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee - 
Chairman 

Number of meetings 
attended during the year 

10 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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Shareholding in the 
Company 

2,13,263 

Relationship with any 
Director (s) of the 
Company 

He is related to Mr. Anupam Gupta- 
Managing director 

 

 (Anupam Narain Gupta) 

                     Managing Director 

             Din: 02294687 
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IND RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED 
CIN: L40102MH2011PLC221715 

Registered Office: 10 C, Comet Building, Gurunanak Road, Bandra West, Mumbai 400050 
Tel No. 022 66996817 

Website: www.indrenewable.com     Email:  ind.renewable01@gmail.com 

 
PROXY FORM 

(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (management 

& Administration) Rules, 2014) 

11th  Annual General Meeting on Friday, 30th September, 2022 

CIN L40102MH2011PLC221715 

Name of the Company IND RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED 

Registered Office: 10 C, Comet Building, Gurunanak Road, Bandra West, 
Mumbai 400050 

Name of the Member(s)  

Registered Address:  

E-mail id:  

Folio No./Client Id  DP ID:  

 

I/we, being the member(s) of ………………………………………………………………….. shares of the above named 

Company, hereby appoint 

1. Name  

               Address  

               Email Id Signature  

               Or failing him  

2. Name 

               Address 

               E-mail id Signature  

               Or failing him  

3. Name 

               Address Signature  

               E-mail id   

 

As my/our proxy to attend or vote for me /us and on my/our behalf at the 11th Annual General Meeting 

of the Company, to be held on Friday, September 30, 2022 at 12.00 PM at the Registered Office of the 

Company at 10 C, Comet Building, Gurunanak Road, Bandra West, Mumbai 400050 and at any 

adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

 

http://www.indrenewable.com/
mailto:ind.renewable01@gmail.com
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Resolution No. Resolution Vote (optional) 
(See Note No. 4) 

For Against 

Ordinary Business 

1.  To receive, consider and adopt the 
Standalone Financial Statements of the 
Company for the Financial year ended 
31st March 2022, the report of the 
Directors and the Auditors thereon. 

 

  

2.  To appoint a director in place of Mr. 
Abhay Narain Gupta (Din- 02294699) who 
retires by rotation and being eligible offers 
himself for re appointment. 

 
 

  

 

Signed this ……………………………. Day of …………………………………………………..2022. 

Signature of the shareholder:  ____________________________________ 

Signature of 1st Proxy holder:  ____________________________________          

Signature of 2nd Proxy holder:     ____________________________________ 

Signature of 3rd Proxy holder:     ____________________________________ 

 

Note:  

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the 

Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the 

meeting. 

2. If Appointed for more than fifty Members, the proxy shall choose any of the fifty members and 

confirm the same to the Company before the commencement of specified period for inspection. 

In case the proxy fails to do so, the Company shall consider only the first fifty proxies received as 

valid 

3. Any alteration or correction made to this proxy form must be initialed by the signatory / 

signatories.  

4. If you wish to vote for a resolution, place a tick in the corresponding box under the column 

marked for. 

If you wish to vote against a resolution, place a tick in the corresponding box under the column 

marked against. If no direction is give, your proxy may vote or abstain as he / she thinks fit. 

 

Affix Revenue 

Stamp 
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Instructions 

1. Unsigned. Incomplete or incorrectly ticked forms are liable to be rejected and the decision 

of the scrutinizer on the validity of the forms will be final. 

2. A shareholder can opt for only one mode of voting i.e either through e-voting or by ballot. If 

a shareholder casts votes by both modes, then voting done through e-voting shall prevail 

and ballot shall be treated as invalid. 

3. The right of voting by ballot form shall not be exercised by a proxy. 

4. To avoid fraudulent transactions, the identity/signature of the shareholders holding shares 

in electronic/demat form is verified with the specimen signatures furnished by NSDL/CDSL 

and that  of shareholders holding shares in physical form is verified as per the records of the 

share transfer agent of the Company i.e. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. Shareholders are 

requested to keep the same updated. 

5. There will be only one ballot form for every folio /DP ID/ Client ID irrespective of the 

number of joint holders. 

6. In case of joint holders, the ballot form should b signed by the first named shareholder and 

in his /her absence by the next named shareholder. Ballot form signed by a joint holder shall 

be treated valid if signed as per records available with the Company and the Company shall 

not entertain any objection on such Ballot form from other joint holders. 

7. Where the ballot form has been singed by an authorized representative of the body 

corporate/trust/society, etc a certified copy of the relevant authorization /board resolution 

to vote should accompany the ballot form. 
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IND RENEWABLE ENERGY LIMITED 
CIN: L40102MH2011PLC221715 

Registered Office: 10 C, Comet Building, Gurunanak Road, Bandra West, Mumbai 400050 
Tel No. 022 66996817 

Website: www.indrenewable.com     Email:  ind.renewable01@gmail.com 

 
ATTENDANCE SLIP 

(To be handed over at the Registration Counter) 
 

 

 

 

 

     I/We certify that I/we am/are registered Member /proxy for the registered Member of the Company. 

I/ We hereby record my presence at the 11th Annual General Meeting of IND RENEWABLE ENERGY 

LIMITED, at 10 C, Comet Building, Gurunanak Road, Bandra West, Mumbai 400050, on Friday, the 30th 

day of September, 2022 at 12:00 PM. 

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

………….. 

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS 

EVEN 
Electronic Voting Event Number 

USER ID PASSWORD 

   

The Remote e-voting facility will be available during the following period: 

Commencement of Remote e-voting End of Remote e-voting 

From  Up to 

The cut off date for the purpose of remote e-voting & voting at the AGM is __________ 

        
 __________________________ 

             Signature of the Member/Proxy 
Note: 

 Members are requested to tender their attendance slips at the registration counters at the 

venue of the AGM and seek registration before entering the meeting hall. 

Regd. Folio No. / DP ID* / Client ID*:      Sl. No. 

Name  : 

Address : 

http://www.indrenewable.com/
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Invitation to attend the 11th Annual General Meeting on 30th September, 2022  

You are cordially invited to attend the 11tht Annual General Meeting of the Company on Friday, 

30th September, 2022 at 12:00 PM  at 10 C, Comet Building, Gurunanak Road, Bandra West, 

Mumbai 400050. 

ROUTE MAP TO THE VENUE 
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